
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (2) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 13th December, 2018 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Room 3.1, 3rd Floor, 5 Strand, London, WC2 5HR 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Tim Mitchell (Chairman) 
Jim Glen 
Aziz Toki 

 

 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is via a visitor’s pass which 
is available from the main ground floor reception at 5 Strand 
from 9.30am.  If you have a disability and require any special 
assistance please contact the Committee Officer (details 
listed below) in advance of the meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Kisi Smith-Charlemagne, Senior Committee and 
Governance Officer. 
 
Email: kscharlemagne@westminster.gov.uk  Tel: 020 7641 
2783 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Director of Law in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of any personal 
or prejudicial interests in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination 
 

 

1.   HYDE PARK, SERPENTINE ROAD, LONDON, W2 2UH11 (Pages 1 - 152) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

1. Knightsbridge 

and Belgravia 

Ward/ not in 

Cumulative 

Impact Area 

Hyde Park, 

Serpentine 

Road, 

London, 

W2 2UH 

New 

Premises 

Licence 

18/11180/LIPN 

 

 

2.   MURIELS KITCHEN, 36 OLD COMPTON STREET, LONDON, 
W1D 4US 

(Pages 153 - 
208) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

2. West End 

Ward/ 

West End 

Cumulative 

Muriels 

Kitchen 

36 Old 

Compton 

Premises 

Licence 

Variation 

18/11463/LIPV 

 



 
 

 

Impact 

Area 

Street 

London 

W1D 4US 
 

 
 
Stuart Love  
Chief Executive 
7 December 2018 
 



 
 

 

In considering applications for premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the sub-
committee is advised of the following: 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the City of Westminster 
statement of Licensing Policy, effective from 7th January 2016. 
 
GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  The most recent version 
was published in April 2018. 
 
CORE HOURS WHEN CUSTOMERS ARE PERMITTED TO BE ON THE PREMISES  
(As set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2016)  
 
•   For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises: 

 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30. 

 
• For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises: 

 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30. 

 
•   For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
 

Friday and Saturday: 09.00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09.00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09.00 to 22.30 
Monday to Thursday: 09.00 to 23.30. 

 



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

   

Date:  13 December 2018 
   

Licensing Ref No:  18/11180/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  Hyde Park 
Serpentine Road 
London 
W2 2UH 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  Knightsbridge And Belgravia 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Ms Daisy Gadd 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 0207 641 2737 
Email: dgadd@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 1

Agenda Item 1



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

21 September 2018 

Applicant: The Royal Parks Limited 

Premises address: Hyde Park 
Serpentine Road 
London 
W2 2UH 

Ward: 
 

Knightsbridge 
and Belgravia 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None 

Premises description: 
 

According to the applicant, the premise currently operates 
as an open space catering for large scale events, national 
celebrations and political demonstrations. 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises has had the benefit of a premises licence 
since at least 2006. The premises is currently licensed 
under reference number 18/10270/LIPDPS which permits 
regulated entertainment and the sale by retail of alcohol 
for consumption on the premises. A copy of this premises 
licence can be found at Appendix 5 of this report. 
 
The existing premises licence is restricted in terms of 
capacities and number of events permitted at the 
premises. At present, the total number of people 
accommodated at the premises at any one time shall not 
be more than 64,999. The premises licence also has the 
benefit of conditions that restrict major events at the 
premises to a maximum of 9 days per calendar year with 
a maximum of 7 major events in any 21 day period. A 
major event is classed as any event exceeding a capacity 
of 4,999. Currently, major events can only be held at the 
premises on no more than 4 days in any calendar year 
where the number of persons attending an event exceeds 
49,999.  

Applicant submissions: The applicant has provided various submissions which 
can be found at Appendix 2 of the report.  

Application information:  On original submission of the application, the details of 
the application sought to standardise the capacities of the 
summer concerts held at the premises at 64,999 persons. 
The application originally sought to permit 9 concerts per 
calendar year at a maximum of 64,999 capacity. The 
application also sought to apply for an additional 6 events 
at a capacity of 19,999 persons.  
 
However, since submission, the applicant has made 
amendments to the application which are detailed below:  

 7 concerts at a capacity of 64,999 with the 
remaining 2 concerts being ‘Proms in the Park and 

page 2



Radio2live’ at a 49,999 capacity.  

 5 occasions per calendar year where the event 
capacity is extended from 5,000 to 19,999.  

 
The applicant has confirmed that the application is still 
seeking the maximum capacity of major events to remain 
at 64,999.  

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

On 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 12:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 12:00 

End: 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for 

 

Performance of a Play Indoors or Outdoors: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for 

 

Exhibition of a Film  Indoors or Outdoors: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 00:00 00:00 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sundays before Bank Holiday Mondays 10:00 to 00:00. 

 

Live Music  Indoors or Outdoors: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 3



Recorded Music  Indoors or Outdoors: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for 

 

Performance of Dance  Indoors or Outdoors: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for 

 

Anything of a similar description to that 
of live music, recorded music or  
performance of dance  

Indoors or Outdoors: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 22:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for 

 
Note: In the application form, the applicant stated that this entertainment of a like 
kind would include clowns, puppet shows, mime artists, circus performers, 
jugglers, arena acts and street artists.  
 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 05:00 05:00 05:00 05:00 05:00 05:00 05:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for 

Adult Entertainment:  None 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 4



 

2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service (withdrawn) 

Representative: 
  

PC Caroline Cockshull 

Received:  
 

10 October 2018 

I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a Responsible Authority, 
make a representation against the above application.  
 
It is our belief that if granted the application would undermine the licensing objectives in 
relation to the prevention of crime and disorder, as there are insufficient conditions 
within the operating schedule. We have concerns that this application will cause further 
policing problems in an already demanding area. 
I had a meeting with Alun Mainwaring yesterday in which we discussed conditioning the 
number of bars that could be open on the days where event capacity would be 19,999. 
He is going to email me with the total number of bars and once I’ve received that we 
can go forward from there. 
 
Following the agreement of conditions, the Metropolitan Police Service withdrew 
their representation to this application on 2 November 2018. 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health 

Representative: Sally Fabbricatore 
 

Received: 
 

17 October 2018 

The premises does benefit from a premises licence 18/09490/LIPDPS. 
 
This representation is based on the Operating Schedule and the submitted plans, 
showing the park space, this does not have a drawing number and it is not dated. 
 
The applicant is seeking the following in the space: 
  

1. To allow the Supply of Alcohol ‘on’ the premises Monday to Sunday 12:00 -
22:30 hours.     
 

2. To allow the provision of Regulated Entertainment ‘indoors and outdoors’ of 
Plays, Live Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance and anything similar 
Monday to Sunday 10:00-22:30 hours.  
 

3. To allow the provision of Regulated Entertainment ‘indoors and outdoors’ of 
Films Monday to Thursday 10:00-23:30, Friday and Saturday 10:00-00:00 
hours, Sunday 10:00-22:30 hours and Sundays prior to bank holidays 10:00-
00:00 hours.  
 

page 5



I wish to make the following representation in relation to the above application: 
 

1. The provision of the Supply of Alcohol may cause an increase in Public 
Nuisance in the area, it may also impact on Public Safety. 
 

2. The provision of Regulated Entertainment may cause an increase in Public 
Nuisance in the area.  

 
 

The main differences between this application and the current premises licence is that 
major events are limited to four events at 64,999 people and five events are limited to 
49,999 people. The proposal is to allow all nine major events to operate with a 
maximum capacity of 64,999 people. The proposal is also to allow up to six events for 
19,999 people.  
 
There is no proposal to increase the operating hours or operational methods.  
 
The applicant has amended current conditions and added conditions within the 
operating schedule which are being considered.  Further conditions may be proposed 
by Environmental Health in order to help prevent Public Nuisance and protect Public 
Safety.   
 
The granting of the new Premises Licence as presented would have the likely 
effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the area and may impact on 
Public Safety. 
 
On Submission of Environmental Health’s representation, the following 
information was requested: 
 
In terms of supplementary detail, can the following be provided in order to justify why 
the increase in numbers won’t impact on the Licensing objectives:  
 

 Details of the dispersal policy for 64,999 people, explaining the difference of a 
49,999 dispersal compared to a 64,999 dispersal (such as stewarding, etc)  

 Duration of past Park Lane road closures with details of the capacity. 

 Details of noise complaints/breaches on those days at 64,999 capacity compared 
to those with a lower capacity.  

 Details of mid-week capacities for the last few years events. 
 
On 5 December 2018, Environmental Health provided further submissions to aid 
their original representation made to this application:  
 
Noise complaint history has been referred to and I can confirm that this is in line with 
our records.  
 
With regard to the proposed conditions I have the following comments. During a 
meeting with the applicants discussions took place regarding these and I am awaiting 
the applicant’s submissions prior to LSC, depending upon the applicant’s submission 
these conditions should be discussed at LSC.  
 
17. To discuss what vicinity means – is this sufficient or should it be that a personal 
licence holder is present in that area or at the bar.  It will also need to be discussed 

page 6



what ‘bar’ means.  
 
18b. Agreed with the applicant that this should now read: Unless otherwise agreed with 
the relevant members of the LSAG, bars will be closed at least 30 minutes before the 
event finish time.  
 
26. Possibly to add that this should be agreed by the LSAG so it reads: The number of 
locations where alcohol is sold at the event shall not exceed those indicated on the 
event plan as agreed by the LSAG. 
 
Reference should be made to the Royal Parks Alcohol Management Plan, possible 
wording: Event organisers shall ensure that the Royal Parks Alcohol Management plan 
is implemented and adhered to.  
 
Environmental Health position 
 
Public Safety 
When the site is built for the summer time concerts it is designed to house the 
maximum capacity of 64,999 people. The LSAG have sight of the infrastructure and the 
internal barrier configuration plans and along with calculations will assess that the 
layout is suitable. Throughout this period the site is suitable for this maximum capacity 
at all times.  Therefore the increase of capacity from 49,999 to 64,999 should not impact 
any further on Public Safety.  
 
With regard to the mid-week events (5,000 to 19,999) these will not be stand-alone 
events and they will take place in the existing footprint for the larger events.  Once 
again these events will go through the same scrutiny (via the LSAG procedure), as per 
the larger events.  All major events (over 5,000 people) will need to ensure various 
conditions are adhered to with regard to Public Safety.  
 
The requirement for a Park Lane road closure is activated when the capacity is 30,000 
people or over, so road closures are currently planned for the nine major impact events 
with the current capacity restrictions.  A road closure will not be required for events 
between 5,000 and 19,999 people.  
 
Public Nuisance 
The music noise level is regulated for major events and is detailed in condition 60.  This 
sets an off-site music noise level that needs to be adhered to. This applies whether 
there is a concert for 49,999 or 64,999 people. These conditions are not changing, 
therefore the impact off site should not change with regard to the music noise level.  
The submission from the Royal Parks shows there is no direct correlation between the 
capacity and the number of complaints. Over the past few years there has been a 
dramatic decrease in noise complaints and the change in set up of the stage and sound 
system has had a positive impact.   
 
To ensure the Prevention of Public Nuisance is upheld for the events between 5,000 
and 19,999 people a further noise management plan should be produced. Due to these 
events not being of a concert nature to set an off-site sound level may not be 
appropriate, however the noise will still need to be restricted. Condition 16 applies at all 
times except when the noise condition (60) applies to major events:  ‘Save for events, to 
which condition 60 applies, the Licensee will take all reasonable steps to ensure that 
amplified music will not cause a nuisance.’  These events would still be deemed major. 

page 7



There are numerous parts to condition 60 which would not always be appropriate for the 
mid-week activity due the variation of activity.  Therefore to ensure that the noise 
management is considered for events between 5,000 and 19,999 the following condition 
has been discussed and agreed:  
 
“No noise generated from the provision of regulated entertainment at Major Events with 
a capacity between 5,000 and 19,999 defined in condition 28(a) shall cause a nuisance. 
To demonstrate this a suitable and sufficient noise management plan shall be produced 
and made available upon request to the responsible authorities.”  
 
This will allow a specific plan to be implemented that is suitable for the proposed activity 
ensuring that a nuisance is not caused. 
 
You will see from the Royal Parks submissions that noise complaints are still received, 
but with the changes since the Review in 2011 the effect on Public Nuisance has 
reduced.  
 
Focusing on the the specific changes to the existing licence, whilst the noise impact 
should be a consideration, the proposed conditions do limit the music levels at the 
concerts (the nine events at 64,999) as per usual and the new events (of up to 19,999) 
will be managed with a noise management plan that allows an activity specific plan to 
be designed and implemented. 
 
Protection of Children from Harm 
An alcohol management plan was produced by the Royal Park, which the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team were able to comment on during its drafting. 
This has resulted in a strict process being followed by the event organiser. This 
document interprets the requirements of the licence especially with regard to the 
Protection of Children from Harm and other requirements under the Licensing Act, such 
as no service to drunk people, smaller measures, etc.  
 
I hope this has provided some assistance to the Committee, and to confirm 
Environmental Health will be present at LSC to assist with any queries.  
 
Note: The above additional submissions made by Environmental Health were 
submitted to the Licensing Service prior to any amendments to the application 
and any additional information/documentation received by the applicant.  
 

 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

  
  

 

Received:  
 

1 October 2018 

More noise. More mess. More people. 
 
Those who live in and around the Park already have to put up with the noise nuisance 
until late at night. The proposal adds more unwelcome noise and more unwelcome 

page 8



people. 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

  
 

 

Received:  
 

9 October 2018 

As a resident living on  not far from Hyde Park I am writing to express 
my objection to the licence application 18/11180/LIPN. Whilst I appreciate that most 
parks around the world hold some form of outdoor entertainment in the summer, Hyde 
Park is already bursting at the seams with events and capacity. The plan to increase the 
smaller events from 5,000 to 19,999 is a 300% increase and completely unnecessary. 
The main events as they stand also do not need an increase in numbers as their 
capacity is already perfectly suitable for the events being held. I am strongly 
recommending that this licence application not go through as this is will further 
aggravate the situation for the local residents in terms of noise and people coming to 
the area. There has to be a limit to this and the current setup seems fair to all parties. 
After the summer events are over, as residents we then to prepare for the winter 
wonderland event in which 3 million people will more than likely attend (as they have 
done in the past). Hyde Park is already at capacity and this does not need to be 
increased! At what point do we decide that this madness has to stop? This is supposed 
to be a park at the end of the day! 
 

Name:  
 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

 
 

Received:  
 

9 October 2018 

The  wishes to object to this application. 
 
It appears to significantly break with the previously established terms and conditions for 
the holding of concerts in the Park. These conditions were intended to help minimise 
the scale of noise and anti-social behaviour that local people have to endure whilst 
these concerts are being held. 
 
Far from continuing any such help, this new application would exacerbate the situation 
for local people simply because of the increase in the scale of concert activity and the 
audience sizes that is being asked for. 
 
We would therefore recommend that this application be turned down and the organisers 
be told that they should strictly adhere to the terms and conditions that have previously 
been established. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 9



Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

  
 

Received: 
 

14 October 2018 

The present system in place for people leaving Hyde Park after an event is not working. 
Despite having marshals in place local residents to Hyde Park suffer from anti social 
behaviour including high levels of noise, rubbish dumped in the streets and private 
properties, for this application to be granted the above mentioned problems would 
increase causing a bigger disturbance and more loss of sleep to residents. 
 
The opening of Crossrail will encourage hundreds/thousands of more people to use the 
narrow residential streets leading to the station, these people will be coming from Hyde 
Park events and with them they will be bring the above mentioned problems. Events are 
planned for Grosvenor Square which is situated between Hyde Park and underground 
and crossrail stations, this will greatly increase the amount of people passing through 
the streets from Hyde Park. On these grounds I very strongly object to the application 
being granted. 
 

Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

 
  

 
 

Received: 
 

17 October 2018 

The Royal Parks are 'The Lungs of London' and this increased use of Hyde Park as an 
outdoor venue is systematically and callously being used to pollute the very air the 
parks produce. 
 
These events in Hyde Park already cause massive disruption and now increased 
capacity is being requested by taking over an even larger share of the park, which will 
magnify the existing problem we face every year, such as: 
 
Restricted access to all park users for weeks; 
No access for the elderly, children, dog-walkers, fitness and sport enthusiasts, cyclists 
and others who use the park on a daily basis, 
Congestion and traffic jams in already busy areas around the park 
Daily air pollution from trucks and generators, for weeks before, during and after the 
events 
Pollution in the park, the streets and in the work and dwelling-places surrounding the 
park 
The sheer numbers of concert-goers approaching and departing Hyde Park at peak 
times, leading to anti-social behaviour, including rubbish in the streets (urinating - and 
worse- in the streets surrounding the park) 
 
 
 

page 10



Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

  
  

 

Received: 
 

18 October 2018 

I object to the proposal to increase the capacity of the 6 smaller events from 4999 
people to 19,999. The area can cope with the current 4999 number without great impact 
on the residential areas near the event. But bringing an extra 15,000 people to the area 
will have a noticeable adverse impact. 
 
I do not object to the request to increase the capacity of the major weekend events by 
15000. An event of 49999 people already swamps the locality; I doubt if the extra 
number can make things worse for local residents. 
 

Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

 

Received: 
 

15 October 2018 

We are residents of Mayfair, , and we wish to formally object to the 
Royal Parks application to increase the capacity of events in Hyde Park.  
 
As it is, the noise from the events is a major problem for us, and the concomitant 
parking and traffic problems are simply horrendous.  
 

Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

  
  

 

Received: 
 

19 October 2018 

We are residents of a flat in . We object to the application to 
increase the capacity of these events for the following reasons: 
- the existing events create significant noise which prohibits quite enjoyment of our 
apartment until late into the evening. In a residential area this is not acceptable. Any 
increase in capacity of these events will only make matters worse. 
- the existing levels of traffic / pedestrian movements create significant disruption to use 
of roads, parking and public transport in our local area. use of the tube and buses on 
event nights is already exceptionally difficult. Any increase in capacity of these events 
will only make matters worse. 
- the unsocial behaviour (drunk and disorderly persons, littering, impact of food and 
waste discarded at the road side) associated with these events is already unacceptable. 
 
Any increase in the capacity of these events will only worsen the situation. 

page 11



We therefore request that the application to increase the capacity of these events is 
declined. 

Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

 
 

Received: 
 

20 October 2018 

I am writing to object to this application. We live close to Hyde Park and believe it 
should be a haven of tranquillity for the residents of London and its visitors.  
 
The Royal Parks want to greatly increase the attendance at their events in Hyde Park. 
These events are noisy, shay damage the turf, they shut off a large portion of the park 
to ordinary visitors behind forbidding palisades, they cause crowds in the streets leading 
to Hyde Park, and there are already too many of them.  
 
Hyde Park is particularly over-used because the Royal Parks treat it as a milch-cow for 
their overall financing. Their historical accounts make this clear. The events that the 
Royal Parks stage during the year, including set-up and take-down time and the time 
taken to restore the damage to the turf effectively deprives ordinary visitors to the 
eastern side of Hyde Park of its serenity for nearly half the year. Any extension of what 
the Royal Parks now do can only make things worse. 
 

Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

 

Received: 
 

22 October 2018 

On behalf of , we strongly 
object to the above licence application. The existing licence is perfectly suited to the 
Royal Park's summer requirements and does not need to be expanded. We have 
received much concern from the residents in Mayfair about the continuing growth of 
events at the park. 
 
We were assured by the park many years ago that there would be no need to increase 
the capacity of the events. 
 
We have been informed by the Royal Parks that they do not anticipate larger numbers 
attending and that the increase request is merely to cater for the "just in case" 
situations. If this is the case, we have to question the reason behind this request. 
We understand that the Royal Parks requires these events to provide for the park's 
upkeep, however, it seems to make no sense whatsoever to increase the capacity 
which will further damage the grass and surrounding environments and would in turn 
create a bigger expense in repairing the damage. 
 
Whilst the Royal Parks may argue that they have received few complaints regarding the 
events, our members will argue that each time they have raised their objections and 

page 12



concerns in the past, it has fallen on deaf ears. 
 
These events put huge demands on traffic in the area and the huge volumes of people 
coming to and from the events is a nuisance to our members as is the amount of 
rubbish they leave in their wake. 
 
The proposed increase of the smaller events from 5,000 to 19,999 is simply not 
acceptable, this is a substantial increase and not reasonable by any standards. The 
smaller events are rightly called "smaller" and should not be allowed to be increased to 
nearly half the capacity of the larger events. 
 
We also reject the application to have all 9 events at 64,999 as they are already large 
enough and well suited for the events. 
 

Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

 

Received: 
 

22 October 2018 

 has concerns about this 
application and therefore lodges an objection.  
 
Our members are already greatly inconvenienced by the various large concerns in Hyde 
Park; in terms of noise, litter, parking, road closures in North Carriage Drive for long 
periods of time (causing traffic problems around the perimeter outside the park) and 
recently the closure of West Carriage Drive during the days the major concerts are on 
and loss of use of much of Hyde Park due to the setting up & dismantling and the during 
the concerts.  
 
To some degree our members ‘put up’ with the inconveniences as they appreciate the 
need for the concerts to fund the running of the Royal Parks in general but that does not 
give an automatic right to extend the number of concerts and numbers attending the 
many events.  
 
However we have serious concerns as to the increase in number of concert goers 
applied for as this is bound to result in more litter, parking problems, noise leaving the 
concerts and the numbers arriving & leaving Hyde Park etc.  
 
We have asked several times for a map and details of the streets & area covered 
outside Hyde Park that the applicant carries out  sweeping after each concert but have 
still not received the information and once we have that information we may consider 
tha ta greater area should be swept. 
 
As far as increase in numbers applied for of six 19,999 capacity we need to understand 
better how these extra events will be managed and dates and the duration of events 
they have applied for. 
 
Although maybe not a matter for the actual application we do feel that the increase in 
'profit' from staging bigger major events on days requested and from the other events 

page 13



the monies should be spent in Hyde Park rather than around all the Royal Parks (for 
example there are no public toilets in the north east corner of Hyde Park by Speakers 
Corner and  for patrons using the large food kiosk in this section of the park - especially 
needed since the public toilets at Marble Arch closed a few years ago) 
 
We have had useful meetings on this matter with the Royal Parks before they submitted 
this application but consider that this dialogue needs to continue so we can understand 
better the application and the effect on residents who live around Hyde Park & 
Kensington Gardens in order that some of problems can be mitigated. 
 

Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

 
 

Received: 
 

10 October 2018 

There is quite a recent history with the Licence for this location especially going back to 
the period 2011/12. At that time there were two hearings in close succession. Firstly 
there was an Environmental Health  led review of the licence because of widespread 
noise nuisance and then  the application for special conditions resulting from the 
decision by  central government that Hyde Park should be one of the locations offering  
large scale transmissions/coverage of the Olympic Games. 
 
Both of those hearings were all day affairs and at the end I guess that an objective 
outside observer would have concluded that a sensible compromise had been reached. 
My personal view was that the operators had come out of it somewhere to the better. 
 
The decision at the time tried to minimise nuisance to neighbours by imposing limits as 
to the number of events, limits as to the number of attendees and other conditions to 
restrict permissible noise. As far as I'm concerned that has not worked fully and I will 
expand on that in any submission I make to a hearing. This is not restricted to noise 
nuisance alone but also to problems arising from road closures etc. 
 
Although I continue to be opposed to the use of public space for the kind of 
commercialisation involved here I imagine that some would argue that a reasonable 
balance has been struck. This application runs a real risk of upsetting that balance. 
 
The application seeks to increase the number of attendees to 5 events which currently 
have a lower limit of 49,999 to 64,999. It also appears to seek an additional 6 events of 
a capacity of 19,999. 
 
My contention is that the existing limits for the 9 allowed events already create nuisance 
before, during and after the events. I am certain that any increase of attendees will lead 
to a corresponding increase of nuisance. 
 
As far as the request for 6 new days is concerned I await to hear the arguments as to 
what the rationale is. My gut instinct is that 19.999 is a lot of attendees and some 
increase in nuisance is inevitable. I am prepared however to reserve judgement until the 
nature and purpose of this part of the application has been more fully explained. 
 

page 14



Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

  
 

Received: 
 

22 October 2018 

I am writing as a stakeholder and on behalf of neighbours as we live close to Hyde Park 
and are part of the "route" for dispersal after the Concerts. The route concerned is 
across Bayswater Road, up Stanhope Place into Connaught Square, Seymour Street 
and Connaught Street. 
 
With regard to the application, there is a big difference on dispersal times and  
consequent public nuisance when the existing crowd capacity is at its present 
maximum. It obviously takes longer for a larger number to disperse than a lower 
number. Another factor in the noise and disturbance very much relates to the nature of 
the concert and the audience. 
 
We also have concert goers parking in the area mentioned in Resident only parking 
bays and then being disturbed by people leaving in their cars. 
 
We all accept and appreciate that funding for the Royal Parks has been cut and that 
they are required to look to maximise their income and have "put up" with the present 
licencing conditions following the Review some time ago. 
 
However, use of the Park is severely restricted to locals for a large part of the summer 
months including set up, removal and inconvenient road closures.( We also endure 
Winter Wonderland during November December and early January and the same 
issues). 
 
It must be said that engagement by the Royal Parks has massively improved over that 
last few years. We are still however awaiting the Management Plan showing the areas 
where litter is collected, which is also part of the public nuisance. 
 
None of the proposed additional income is ring fenced for Hyde Park but is shared 
between all the Royal Parks in spite of the facts that Hyde Park is used the most and is 
surrounded by residents, in Park Lane, my area and along Bayswater Road ie the 
immediate vicinity. 
 
We feel we that the application is seeking the "maximum" and there needs to be some 
compromise to mitigate the disturbances endured by local residents. 
 

Name: 
 

 

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

 

Received: 
 

22 October 2018 

The  supports this application as it understands & 

page 15



respects the requirement of Hyde Park to run events to fund the future of the Park for all 
users. The professionalism of the Royal Parks to manage such events & work 
constructively with stakeholders, such as ourselves, to mitigate any detrimental effects 
of these events is also welcomed. Also appreciated is the important placed by Royal 
Parks management on the choice of event entertainment to ensure, as much as 
possible, a respectful crowd & the least possible disturbance to both the Parks & 
surrounding neighbourhoods. Whilst, in support of this application, we wish to note that 
certain members of our Association who live in close proximity to the Marble Arch end 
of Hyde Park, such as in Stanhope Place & Connaught Square remain concerned with 
certain aspects of these events. Illegal parking in residents parks during events is an 
ongoing frustration & must be addressed by WCC Parking. Dispersal from such events 
is also of concern as is strict management of noise levels & waste clearance post 
events. Ongoing dialogue & responsive action on these matters with Parks 
management is appreciated.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 16



3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises: 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to 
midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
 
For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
Monday to Thursday: 09:00 to 23.30 
Friday and Saturday: 09:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09:00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09:00 to 22:30 

Policy PVC1 applies: 

 

Applications will generally be granted and reviews determined, 
subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and 
CH1. 

Policy COMB1 
applies: 

 

 (i) Where a premises proposes to operate as a combined use 
premises applications will be considered on their merits with 
regard to each of the relevant policies e.g. Policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 CH1 CIP1 and HRS1. 

(ii) The Licensing Authority will take into account the current 
and proposed use of the premises when considering what 
weight is to be given to the relevant uses and policies.  

It will take into account what is the primary use of the 
premises, if any, and which licensable activities are proposed 
outside the core hours (see policy HRS1). 

(iii) It will consider any premises which include any pub or bar 
use or provide facilities for fast food and drink or for music and 
dancing primarily under the policies specific to those uses e.g. 
PB1&PB2, FFP1 & FFP2, MD1 & MD2. 

Policy MD1 applies: 

 

Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated that 
the proposal meets the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 

 
 

 
 

page 17



4. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Interested party additional submissions 

Appendix 5 Copy of existing premises licence 
 

Appendix 6 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 7 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 
Report author: Ms Daisy Gadd 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 0207 641 2737 
Email: dgadd@westminster.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Representation Metropolitan Police (withdrawn) 10 October 2018 

5 Representation Environmental Health 17 October 2018 

6 Representation Interested Party 1 October 2018 

7 Representation Interested Party 9 October 2018 

8 Representation Interested Party 9 October 2018 

9 Representation Interested Party 14 October 2018 

10 Representation Interested Party 17 October 2018 

11 Representation Interested Party 18 October 2018 

12 Representation Interested Party 15 October 2018 

13 Representation Interested Party 19 October 2018 

14 Representation Interested Party 20 October 2018 

15 Representation Interested Party 22 October 2018 

16 Representation Interested Party 22 October 2018 

17 Representation Interested Party 10 October 2018 

18 Representation Interested Party 22 October 2018 

19 Representation Interested Party 22 October 2018 

 

page 18



Premises Plans                 Appendix 1 
 

 

page 19



Applicant Supporting Documents              Appendix 2 
 

 
 

page 20



 
 
 
 
 

page 21



Note: The following documentation was received by the Licensing Service on 6 
December 2018. 

 
 

page 22



 
 

page 23



 
 

page 24



 
 

page 25



 
 

page 26



 

page 27



 
 

page 28



 
 

page 29



 
 

page 30



 
 

page 31



 
 

page 32



 
 

page 33



 
 

page 34



 
 

page 35



 
 

page 36



 
 

page 37



 
 

page 38



 
 

page 39



 
 

page 40



 
 

page 41



 
 

page 42



 
 

page 43



 
 

page 44



 
 

page 45



 
 

page 46



 
 

page 47



 
 

page 48



 
 

page 49



 
 

page 50



 
 

page 51



 
 

page 52



 
 

page 53



 
 

page 54



 
 

page 55



 
 

page 56



 
 

page 57



 
 

page 58



 
 

page 59



 
 

page 60



 
 

page 61



 
 

page 62



 
 

page 63



 
 

page 64



 
 

page 65



 
 

page 66



 
 

page 67



 
 

page 68



 
 

page 69



 
 

page 70



 
 

page 71



 
 

page 72



 
 

page 73



 
 

page 74



 
 

page 75



 
 

page 76



 
 

page 77



 
 

page 78



 
 

page 79



 
 

page 80



 
 

page 81



 
 

page 82



 
 

page 83



 
 

page 84



 
 

page 85



 
 

page 86



 
 

page 87



 
 

page 88



 
 

page 89



 
 

page 90



 
 

page 91



 
 

page 92



 
 

page 93



 
 

page 94



 
 

page 95



 
 

page 96



 
 

page 97



 
 

page 98



 
 

page 99



 
 

page 100



 
 
 
 

page 101



 
 

page 102



 
 

page 103



 
 

page 104



 
 

page 105



 
 

page 106



 
 

page 107



 
 

page 108



 
 

page 109



 
 

page 110



 
 

page 111



 
 

page 112



 
 

page 113



 

page 114



Premises History               Appendix 3 
 

Application 
Reference 

Application 
details 

Date of 
Determination 

Decision 

06/01112/LIPN Application for a 
new premises 
licence. 

23.03.2006 Granted by 
Licensing Sub-
Committee 

06/05310/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

28.06.2006 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

06/08782/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

14.09.2006 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

06/12602/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

14.02.2007 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

07/04635/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

18.05.2007 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

07/04638/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

27.06.2007 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

06/05468/WCCMAP Master licence 
 

  

09/04670/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

09.07.2009 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

09/06773/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

10.12.2009 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

10/04753/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

19.07.2010 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

10/05212/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

28.07.2010 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

11/00569/LIPN Application for a 
new premises 
licence. 

17.03.2011 Granted by 
Licensing Sub-
Committee 

11/04226/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 

20.05.2011 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

page 115



Supervisor. 

11/05731/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

17.06.2011 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

11/07745/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

03.08.2011 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

12/05697/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

07.09.2012 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

13/03616/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

09.08.2013 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

13/06271/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

13.09.2013 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

14/04373/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

16.06.2014 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

14/06585/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

01.09.2014 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

15/03594/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

25.05.2015 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

15/05361/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

17.07.2015 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

15/06900/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

28.08.2015 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

15/06901/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

28.08.2015 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

16/05079/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

07.06.2016 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

16/05082/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 

07.06.2016 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

page 116



Supervisor. 

16/08497/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

23.08.2016 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

16/08498/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

22.08.2016 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

17/02513/LIPT Application to 
transfer the licence 
from Royal Parks 
Agency to The 
Royal Parks 
Limited 

30.03.2017 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

17/05964/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

16.03.2018 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

17/05966/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

16.03.2018 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

17/08820/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

26.09.2017 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

17/08821/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

02.07.2018 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

18/05913/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

02.07.2018 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

18/05916/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

02.07.2018 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

18/09490/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

31.08.2018 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

18/10270/LIPDPS Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises 
Supervisor. 

27.09.2018 Granted under 
Delegated 
Authority 

 
 
 
 

page 117



Application 
Reference 

Application 
details 

Date of 
Determination 

Decision 

09/02760/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

15.04.2009 Event to proceed 

11/03486/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

12.04.2011 Event to proceed 

11/03499/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

12.04.2011 Event to proceed 

11/03505/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

12.04.2011 Event to proceed 

11/03507/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

13.04.2011 Event to proceed 

11/03544/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

13.04.2011 Event to proceed 

11/03549/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

13.04.2011 Event to proceed 

11/03552/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

13.04.2011 Event to proceed 

11/07257/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

13.07.2011 Event to proceed 

12/03285/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

25.04.2012 Event to proceed 

12/03288/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

25.04.2012 Event to proceed 

12/03291/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

25.04.2012 Event to proceed 

12/03293/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

25.04.2012 Event to proceed 

15/04354/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice application 

16.06.2015 Event to proceed 

 

Application 
Reference 

Application 
details 

Date of 
Determination 

Decision 

11/12334/LIREVP Application to 
review the 
premises licence. 
The review was 
brought by 
Environmental 
Health on the 
grounds of public 
safety and public 
nuisance as there 
was a large 
number of 
complaints 
concerning the 
music emanating 
from live events. 

17.02.2012 The Sub-
Committee 
decided to reduce 
the proposed 
number of events 
from 13 to 9 and 
reduce the 
capacity from 
79,999 to 64,999 
from 1 January 
2013.  

 
 

page 118



Interested Party Additional Submissions           Appendix 4 
 
I  Westminster’s Citizens Advice Bureau] have been asked to 
assist two of the objectors,  in relation to this 
application, which is listed for hearing next Thursday 13th December. I thought it would 
be helpful to summarise the position of these objectors in advance of the hearing – 
please see attached.  
 
Please note that although this is a summary reflecting a consensus of views, they may 
each have separate issues they wish to emphasise to the Sub-Committee.  

 
Application for a new premises licence 
Hyde Park, Serpentine Road, London W2 2UH 
 Ref: 18/11180/LIPN 

1.  have both submitted relevant representations in respect 

of the application. They met with the applicant and their solicitors on Friday 30 

November. It was a useful meeting, and matters were discussed robustly and 

frankly. The applicant outlined some proposed changes to the 

application/conditions, which they said they would confirm in writing following the 

meeting. We understand from Alun Thomas that this will be provided shortly. We 

shall provide comments on these in advance of the hearing. 

 
2. Members will be aware of the history of the premises licence, namely the 

catalogue of noise-related incidents complained of by local residents which gave 

rise to a review application by the Environmental Health Consultation Team in 

2011 (ref: 11/12334/LIREVP). The review application was supported by a large 

number of residents from a wide geographical area. This reflected the scope of 

the nuisance which was being caused to local residents at that time. 

 
3. Following the review application, the LSC determined that it was appropriate to 

inter alia reduce the number of ‘major events’ from 13 days to 9 days; and to 

reduce the capacity of ‘major events’ to 49,999 for 5 days, and to 64,999 for 4 

days. 

 
4. Since then, it is fair to say that in my clients’ view the situation has improved 

somewhat, although they would both demur from any suggestion that the 

improvement is as great as might at first glance be the impression given by the 

reduction in the number of noise complaints received. Nevertheless, the delicate 

balance between the various interests has been better maintained than was the 

case before 2012.  

 
5. However, their view is that significant nuisance does still result from ‘major 

events’ as defined in the licence. This application seeks to significantly increase 

the number of ‘major events’ from 9 to 15 (by the addition of 6 events with a 

maximum capacity of 19,999) and to increase the capacity of 5 of the 9 ‘major 

events’ currently permitted from 49,999 to 64,999.  

consider that this constitutes a substantial and real risk that public nuisance 

page 119



would increase. They believe that it is inevitable that an increase in capacity and 

in the number of ‘major events’ will lead to more problems. The question is 

whether this impact can be mitigated. 

 
6. The application is essentially in three parts in terms of the differences to the 

current licence: 

 
7. To amend the wording of a number of conditions.  

 
7.1 No comment is made on this, save for the proposals to conditions 18(b) and 

20 in the applicant’s amended schedule of conditions.  

7.2 Condition 18(b): Currently, bars must close at least 30 mins before the event 

finish time. What is proposed is that bars must close by 2200 at the latest, 

except when an event is due to finish earlier. In that case, the closing time of 

bars is to be agreed with Hyde Park Licensing and Safety Advisory Group 

(LSAG). Therefore although this may well result in the bars always closing at 

least 30 mins before the event finish time, it is not actually mandated as it is 

under the current licence. This obviously has an impact on dispersal, and so 

clarification would be appreciated. 

 
7.3 Condition 20:  Currently, drinks must not be sold or served in glass vessels or 

containers. What is proposed is that this stipulation will not apply to 

‘designated controlled areas’ such as VIP or hospitality areas – which would 

be agreed with LSAG. Indeed, a number of conditions are predicated on the 

requirements/agreement/requests of LSAG. Clarification on the actual 

mechanics of the interrelation between the applicant and LSAG would be 

appreciated. 

 
8. To hold up to 6 days of ‘major events’ for up to 19,999 people.  

 
8.1 These are additional ‘major events’ to the current event programme. The 

applicant has explained the purpose of this request, and my clients have 

been assured that these will not be ‘standalone’ events, but will take place 

between the weekends of the British Summertime events, and will still be free 

of charge. Whilst this is some reassurance, my clients are firmly of the view 

that the jump from 4,999 (the current threshold for a ‘major event’) to 19,999 

for these 6 events if too great an increase.  

 
8.2 They would suggest that should Members be minded to permit more ‘major 

events’ of this type they are restricted to a maximum capacity of 9,999, and 

the time period when these events may take place should be defined in the 

licence, perhaps with reference to the Royal Parks’ Major Event Strategy 

which itself sets out and limits what ‘major events’ are held. 

 
9. To hold up to 9 days of ‘major events’ for up to 64,999 people.  

 

page 120



9.1 The current position is that 5 days of ‘major events’ can be held for up to 

49,999; and that up to 4 days of ‘major events’ can be held for up to 64,999 

people.  

 
9.2 The application therefore effectively envisages an increase in events with a 

capacity over 49,999 from 4 to 9. In fact, at the meeting on 30 November the 

applicant indicated that they would be amending this request to 7 days of 

‘major events’ for up to 64,999, with the additional 2 days (which we 

understand to be the BBC Proms in the Park) remaining at 49,999.  

  
9.3 Nevertheless, the increase in numbers of people attending the events would 

be significant. My clients’ contention is simply that even if, as claimed, a 

64,999 capacity takes no longer to disperse than a 49,999 capacity, a 64,999 

capacity will result (even if well behaved) in more noise than 49,999. A 

64,999 capacity will result in more litter than a 49,999 capacity. A 64,999 

capacity will require a larger clean-up operation than a 49,999 capacity. A 

64,999 capacity creates a greater likelihood of anti-social behaviour than a 

49,999 capacity. 

 
10. We are aware that the applicant has developed management procedures to 

address these sorts of issues. One such is a Cleansing Plan. This was kindly 

shared with my clients at the meeting on 30 November although there appeared 

to be an issue with the colour-coding of the map, which will need correcting. Mr 

Zamit requests that the scope of the Cleansing Plan should include Connaught 

Square, and along Park Lane to include Brook Street, Park Street, Green Street 

and North Row Mr Zamit will no doubt be able to identify these areas on a map at 

the hearing if required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 121



Existing Premises Licensing                     Appendix 5 
 

 
 

page 122



 
 

page 123



 
 
 

page 124



 
 

page 125



 
 

page 126



 
 

page 127



 
 

page 128



 
 

page 129



 
 

page 130



 
 

page 131



 
 
 

page 132



 
 

page 133



 
 

page 134



 
 

page 135



 
 

page 136



 
 
 
 
 

page 137



 Appendix 6 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  

 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 

 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 

premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is 
suspended. 

 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 

the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed 

or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 

page 138



characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 

encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 

flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 

than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by 
reason of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 

request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises 
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 

must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 

to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 

policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 

bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 

having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 

material which is available to customers on the premises; and 

page 139



 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 

quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or 
officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to 
prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 
Act 1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 

Value Added Tax Act 1994. 
 

page 140



8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from 
this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
9.  Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the 

film classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or 
recommended by this licensing authority as appropriate.  

 
10.  All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or 

against outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 

 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
11. Unless otherwise agreed with the City Council, the total number of people to 

be accommodated for the purposes of this Licence, in any event site at any 
one time shall not be more than 64,999 (excluding security, staff, 
performers and employees). 

 
12. Save for unanticipated occurrences or emergencies, and with the 

agreement of relevant officer(s) of the Hyde Park Licensing & Safety 
Advisory Group (“LSAG”), the hours when the licensable activities will be 
carried out will be no later than the hours set out below: 

Regulated Entertainment: Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 22:30 

Exhibition of Films: Monday to Thursday 10:00 to 23:30 

Friday to Saturday 10:00 to 00:00 

Sunday 10:00 to 22:30 

Sunday before Bank Holiday 10:00 to Midnight 

 

Alcohol: Monday to Sunday 12:00 to 22:30 

 

13. Risk assessments shall be produced for each event, and these shall be 
made available to the Environmental Health Consultation Team no less 
than 28 days before the event where practicable. 

 

14. External organisers of events shall refer to the relevant Guides, copies of 
which have been deposited with the Licensing Authority. 

 

page 141



15. External organisers shall be issued with an agreement for hire of the Park, 
or part thereof. This agreement shall include the conditions attached to the 
Premises Licence and, if relevant, those agreed as a result of meetings of 
the LSAG. 

 

16. Save for events to which condition 60 applies, the Licensee will take all 
reasonable steps to ensure that amplified music will not cause a nuisance. 

 
17. Each operator selling alcohol shall have a personal licence holder on the 

premises save as agreed with the Licensing Safety Advisory Group 
(“LSAG”) and in accordance with the Alcohol Management Plan.  

 
18. When alcohol is sold at the event the following conditions shall apply to all 

bars, both for the public and in hospitality areas: 
 

a) Unless otherwise agreed with LSAG bars will be closed at least 30 
minutes before the event finish time. 

b) Bars will not be permitted to run price promotions, happy hours or other 
promotions designed to encourage excessive drinking.  

c) Unless otherwise agreed with LSAG drinks will not be sold or served in 
glass vessels or containers. 

 
19. Unless otherwise agreed by the Police, alcohol will not be sold on more 

than 20 days in any calendar year. For each of the 20 days the Responsible 
Authorities must be given a minimum of 28 days notice and the Metropolitan 
Police will have the right to veto the sale of alcohol at events provided they 
give notice of their veto no later than 7 days after being notified. 

 
20. Drinks shall not be sold or served in glass vessels or containers or served in 

any measure greater than a pint, except in designated controlled areas - 
such as in VIP or Hospitality areas - as pre-agreed by the LSAG. 

 
21. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, 

shall be available throughout the permitted hours in all parts of the premises 
where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises. 

 
22. A Challenge25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises 

where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised 
photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or 
proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

 
23. All training records shall be made available to Police, officers of the 

licensing authority and Trading Standards upon request.  
 

24. The premises shall at all times maintain and operate an age-restricted sales 
refusals recording system (either in book or electronic form) which shall be 
reviewed by the Designated Premises Supervisor. This refusals recording 
system shall be available upon request to police, Licensing Authority staff 
and Trading Standards.  

 
25. Unless otherwise agreed with the LSAG, reasonable prevention methods 

shall be undertaken to deter members of the public from bringing any 

page 142



alcohol into, or removing any alcohol from the licensed area.  
 

26. The number of locations where alcohol is sold at the event shall not exceed 
those indicated on the event plan approved by LSAG.  

 
27. At all locations where alcohol is sold, the name and contact telephone 

number of the Designated Premises Supervisor shall be displayed in a 
prominent position on the premises, so that is it clearly visible. The named 
Personal Licence Holder for that location will also be displayed with their 
contact telephone number. 

 

Conditions applicable to Major Events 

 

28. Unless the prior consent of the Environmental Health Consultation Team 
and Westminster City Council has been obtained, the premises may only 
hold Major Events where the number of persons attending the event 
(excluding security, staff, performers and employees) is between: 

 
a) 5,000 – 19,999 on no more than 5 days per calendar year (which will be 

part of the existing Hyde Park events calendar – none will be staged as 
stand-alone events)  

b) 20,000 – 49,999 on no more than 2 days per calendar year  
c) 50,000 – 64,999 on no more than 7 days per calendar year  
 
With a maximum of 7 such Major Events defined in (b) and (c) above in a 
rolling 21 day period.  

 
 A ‘Major Event’ is an event where:  
 

a) The playing of live and/or recorded music and/or the showing of films or 
recorded images, as defined by the Licensing Act 2003 is the principal 
reason for attending the event; and 

b) Where the number of persons attending the event (excluding security, 
staff, performers and employees) exceed 4,999.  

 
29. Unless the prior consent of the Environmental Health Consultation Team 

has been obtained, the premises may hold Major Events on no more than 
three days in any calendar year where the showing of films or recorded 
images, as defined by the Act, is the principal reason for persons attending 
the Event. 

 

30. Save for Events to which Condition 28 applies, licensable activities after 
18:30 shall be restricted to no more than 30 days per annum and such 
activities shall cease no later than 22:00 with the exception of the showing 
of films where the hours above apply. 

 

31. Any major events shall be notified to the Responsible Authorities and LSAG 
with a minimum 28 days notice, unless otherwise agreed. Any member of 
the LSAG may request a meeting for such other events not included in the 
definition of Major Event. 

page 143



 

32. Membership of the LSAG shall include as a minimum; the Licensee, the 
event organiser (where the Licensee is not the event organiser), the 
Licensing Authority, Environmental Health Consultation Team, Westminster 
Special Events & Emergency Planning, Metropolitan Police Service, 
LFEPA, London Ambulance Service and Transport for London. Additional 
members will be invited as appropriate for each meeting. 

 

33. An advertised 'hotline' telephone number to the Licensee shall be available 
to local residents. 

 

34. Any queue which forms outside the premises shall be stewarded at all times 
to ensure that minimal disturbance is caused. 

 

35. Patrons shall be encouraged not to congregate outside the premises after 
the event has finished. 

 

36. Promotional literature and tickets will contain information regarding public 
transport options and public conveniences and shall request persons to 
leave the area quietly. 

 

37. One person must be nominated for each major event to act as safety co-
ordinator, who is authorised to carry out all reasonable requests made by 
the LSAG or their authorised representative. 

 

38. The LSAG or their authorised representative must be provided with the 
particulars of the nominated safety co-ordinator. 

 

39. Unless otherwise agreed, no later than 28 days prior to the event an Event 
Management Plan must be presented to the LSAG, or their authorised 
representative for their comment and advice. The Event Management Plan 
shall include, as a minimum: 

 

a) Emergency and Evacuation procedures; 
b) Crowd management and stewarding arrangements; 
c) A detailed plan showing site layout and emergency egress points; 

 

40. So far as is reasonably practicable the Event Organiser must ensure that 
the event is run in accordance with the Event Management Plan. 

 

41. There shall be adequate means of control to ensure that only permitted 
numbers of persons gain access to the event site. 

 

42. Adequate stewarding within the licensed area must be provided at all times 
during the licensed event. 

 

43. Upon reasonable request, authorised enforcement officers of the 

page 144



Responsible Authorities: Environmental Health Consultation Team, 
Metropolitan Police Service and London Fire Brigade, must be provided with 
security passes for full and free access at all times to each and every part of 
the licensed area. 

 

44. A communication system must be provided to ensure the effective 
operation of the site under both normal and emergency evacuation 
conditions. The Licensee must provide an adequate incident control centre 
and a rendezvous point for the Police and other emergency services. 

 

45. Adequate rigid barriers or fences designed to adequately resist right-angle 
and parallel loads commensurate with probable crowd pressure must be 
provided around any stage and other location where it is necessary to limit 
crowd pressure in the interests of safety. 

 

46. Details of all marquees, tented structures and temporary structures should 
be provided including emergency exits and signage, fire warning and fire 
fighting equipment. 

 

47. All fabric, including curtains and drapes used on stage for tents and 
marquees, or plastic and weather sheeting, shall be inherently or durably 
flame retardant to the relevant British Standards. Certificates of Compliance 
must be available upon request by the LSAG or their authorised 
representative. 

 

48. Full structural design details and calculations of all and any structures to be 
erected within the licensed area, must be submitted to the Westminster City 
Council Building Control. A certificate from a competent person or engineer 
that a completed structure has been erected in accordance with the 
structural drawings and design specification must be available for inspection 
prior to a relevant structure being used during the licensed event. 

 

49. Any moving flown equipment must contain a device or method whereby 
failure in the lifting system would not allow the load to fall. All hung 
scenery and equipment must be provided with a minimum of two securely 
fixed independent suspensions such that in the event of failure of one 
suspension the load will be safely sustained. 

 

50. A sufficient number of easily identifiable, readily accessible receptacles for 
refuse must be provided, including provisions for concessions. 
Arrangements must be made for regular collection. Public areas must be 
kept clear of refuse and other combustible waste prior to, and so far as is 
reasonably practicable, during the licensed event. 

 

51. After any event any litter remaining will be collected and removed from the 
site as soon as physically possible, either overnight or starting daybreak the 
following day if it is considered impractical to collect the litter in darkness. 

 

page 145



52. Regular fire patrols must be maintained at all times when the public are 
present in the licensed area to check for and guard against possible fire 
hazards. The area underneath the stage to be kept clear of flammable 
materials. 

 

53. A schedule detailing types and locations of fire fighting equipment must be 
submitted to the LSAG or their authorised representative as required. 

 

54. Competent persons shall be employed to assess the electrical requirements 
at the event and the compatibility of the electricity supply with the equipment 
to be used. Appropriate safety devices (such as 30mA Residual Current 
Devices at Source) must be used for electrical apparatus, particularly for 
any electrical equipment exposed to adverse conditions or electrical 
equipment to be used in association with hand held devices (e.g. 
microphones). The competent person must make a certificate of inspection 
of the electrical installation available for inspection. 

 

55. Emergency exits and entrances to the event area must be kept clear at all 
times and must be provided with clearly visible signage. 

 

56. All parts of the licensed area intended to be used in the absence of 
adequate daylight and all essential safety signage shall be suitably 
illuminable. Details of the locations and level of illumination must be 
submitted to the LSAG or their authorised representative. 

 

57. Electrical generators, where used, must be: 

 

(a) Suitably located clear of buildings, marquees and structures, and 
free from flammable materials, save for that in the generator tank; 

(b) Enclosed to prevent unauthorised access; 
(c) Able to provide power for the duration of the event; 
(d) Back up electrical generators are to be provided to power essential 

communications, lighting and Safety systems in the event of primary 
generator failure, unless otherwise agreed by LSAG. 

 

58. All spare fuel, including LPG, must be kept and stored safely in accordance 
with relevant Health and Safety legislation and suitable safety signage and 
fire fighting equipment provided. 

 

59. Unless otherwise agreed, details of any proposed use and storage of 
lasers, special effects, fireworks or pyrotechnics shall be presented to the 
LSAG or their authorised representative, and the Environmental Health 
Consultation Team 28 days in advance of the event. 

 

60. The following noise conditions shall apply: 
 

(a) A noise control consultant shall be appointed, who shall liaise 
between all parties including the Licence Holder, promoter, sound 

page 146



system supplier, sound engineer and the Environmental Health 
Consultation Team on all matters relating to noise control prior to the 
event. 

(b) For the purposes of monitoring music noise levels during the event 
and sound check, the noise control consultant shall contact the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team and agree noise sensitive 
locations which are to be used to monitor compliance with conditions 
(d) and (e). 

(c) A noise propagation test shall be undertaken in consultation with 
representative(s) of the Environmental Health Consultation Team 
prior to each Major Event in order to set appropriate control limits at 
the sound mixer position. The sound system shall be configured and 
operated in a similar manner as intended for the event. The sound 
source used for the test shall be similar in character to the music 
likely to be produced during the event. 

(d) The control limits set at the mixer position shall be adequate to 
ensure that the Music Noise Level shall not at 1 metre from the 
façade of any noise sensitive premises exceed 75 dB(A) over a 5 
minute period throughout the duration of the concert. 

(e) Rehearsal and sound check times shall be limited between the hours 
of 10:00 and 20:00. Notification of the time(s) and duration of sound 
checks shall be provided to the Environmental Health Consultation 
Team at least 24 hours beforehand. 

(f) The promoter, system supplier and all individual sound engineers 
shall be informed of the sound control limits and that any instructions 
from the noise control consultant regarding noise levels shall be 
implemented. 

(g) A communications link should be provided to enable condition (f) 
above to be complied with and any numbers / radios shall be made 
available to the Environmental Health Consultation Team prior to the 
event starting. 

(h) The appointed noise control consultant shall continuously monitor 
noise levels at the sound mixer position and advise the sound 
engineer accordingly to ensure that the noise limits are not 
exceeded. The Environmental Health Consultation Team shall have 
access to the results of the noise monitoring at all times. The 
Environmental Health Consultation Team shall have access and 
facilities to enable them to carry out their own monitoring. 

(i) No members of the audience shall be allowed within 3 metres of any 
speakers. 

(j) The speakers must be located to the satisfaction of the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team. 

(k) Residential properties and the relevant amenity group(s) in the 
immediate vicinity of the Park will be contacted as soon as 
reasonable practicable (and in any event no later than 28 days) prior 
to any Major Event advising them of the times of the Event and any 
sound check or rehearsal times and giving them a telephone number 
to contact in the event that they have any complaints. 

61. No Noise generated from the provision of regulated entertainment at Major 
Events with a capacity between 5,000 and 19,999 defined in condition 28(a) 
shall cause a nuisance. To demonstrate this a suitable and sufficient a 
noise management plan shall be produced and made available upon 

page 147



request to the responsible authorities.  
 

62. Adequate medical and first aid cover and facilities appropriate to the 
licensed event must be provided.  

 
63. Adequate drinking water points in suitable locations must be provided and 

maintained to the satisfaction of the LSAG or their authorised 
representative.  

 
64. Adequate sanitary accommodation must be provided and maintained to 

serve the licensed event to at least the standards contained within the 
“Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at Pop Concerts and Similar Events”, 
or as advised by the Environmental Health Consultation Team. Suitable 
arrangements must be made for the collection and disposal of used hand 
towels, sanitary towels and other refuse from the sanitary accommodation.  

 
65. Details of the proposed location, level of provision and means of effective 

maintenance and servicing of sanitary accommodation must be submitted 
to the LSAG or their authorised representative if requested.  

 
66. During the build up and break down of the events site, any activities that 

might cause noise to be audible outside the Park will be limited to the hours 
of 08:00 to 20:00 Monday to Friday and 10:00 to 18:00 Saturday to Sunday.  

 
67. Any generators, refrigerators or other machinery running overnight will be 

silenced, screened or sited so as not to be audible outside the Park. 
 

68. There shall be a welfare point (or equivalent area) for the reporting and 
management of lost children. The welfare point will be staffed by trained 
(and appropriately certified by the Disclosure and Barring Service) members 
of staff who will be in radio contact with the head steward and the safety co-
ordinator. 

 
69. The Event Organiser, contractor and any staff employed thereof shall 

comply with the Conditions of this Licence. 
 

70. All reasonable endeavours shall be undertaken to ensure that all functions 
relating to the setting up, the executions and dismantling of the event, the 
licensed are and all equipment are carried out in accordance with the 
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and all related regulations, Codes 
of Practice and Guidance Notes. All assistance for the necessary 
inspections relating to Health and Safety both prior to and during the 
licensed event shall be provided. All documentation required by the Health 
and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 relating to contractors and employees 
must be available for inspection by authorised officers at all times during the 
licensed event and must be kept at a location at the licensed area to be 
notified to the LSAG or their authorised representative. 

 
71. Arrangements shall be made, to the satisfaction of WCC, for the cleansing 

of litter and waste in the vicinity of Hyde Park during and after events.  
 

72. The event organiser will comply with all reasonable requirements of the 

page 148



Environmental Health Consultation Team, Westminster City Council, the 
London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority and the Metropolitan Police 
Service. 

 
73. Throughout the duration of the events (including sound checks, rehearsals 

and concert performances) the Music Noise Levels (MNLs) shall not 
exceed 15dB (LAeq5 minute) above background (Representative LA90 
obtained on a number of equivalent days during the last 4 hours of the 
proposed concert time without the event running) or 65dB (LAeq 5 minute) 
whichever is the lowest. The MNL shall be assessed at measurement points 
greater than 1km to the north and 750 metres to the east (distance 
measured from the main stage mixer position). These measurement points 
will not be situated on trunk roads. All measurement points will be 
prescribed  in the Noise Management Plan. 

 
74. Throughout the duration of the events (including sound checks, rehearsals 

and concert performances) the control limits set at the mixer position shall 
be adequate to ensure that the 63 Hz and 125 Hz octave frequency bands 
shall not exceed 75 dB (LZeq 15 minutes) as a result of Music Noise Level 
(MNL) beyond a 2Km radius (distance measured from the main stage mixer 
position). The 63 Hz and 125 Hz octave frequency bands shall be assessed 
in a free field position at measurement points prescribed by Westminster 
City Council Environmental Health. 

 
75. At events of 30,000 capacity or less, any unnecessary delay towers will be 

switched off upon the reasonable request of the Environmental Health 
Consultation Team.  

 
76. Sufficient numbers of stewards/marshals shall be employed as required by 

the size of the event to ensure that patrons leave the premises safely.  
 

77. Unless otherwise agreed, an Egress Management Plan shall be presented 
to and agreed by the LSAG or their authorised representative, no later than 
28 days prior to the event. Please note: The Egress Management Plan may 
require the closure of Park Lane or other surrounding roads with the 
approval of the relevant authorities. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Police and agreed with the applicant so as to form 
part of the operating schedule:  
 
78.  Where the number of persons attending an event is between 5,000 and 19,999, 

and where that event is taking place within a site capacity of 64,999, bars shall 
be operated at one third or less of the bars operating at 64,999 to reflect the 
lower capacity audience, an in agreement with LSAG. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 
 
No further conditions are proposed following the above applicant submissions detailed  
at Appendix 2 and the conditions detailed above.  
 

 
 

page 149



Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity         Appendix 7 
 

 
 
Residential count = 725 persons within 75m of the premises perimeter 

page 150



Licence Number Trading Name Address Time Period

18/02691/LIPDPS The Lido Cafe

Ground Floor Hyde Park 1 

Serpentine Road London W2 

2UH

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 

23:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00

06/09060/WCCMA

P

Serpentine Lido And Sun 

Terrace

Ground Floor Hyde Park 1 

Serpentine Road London W2 

2UH

Monday to Thursday; 10:00 - 

23:00 | Friday to Saturday; 

10:00 - 00:00 | Sunday; 10:00 - 

22:30

18/02690/LIPDPS

The Lido Restaurant 

(Seasonal Exterior Bar)

Ground Floor Hyde Park 1 

Serpentine Road London W2 

2UH

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 

23:30 | Sunday; 10:00 - 23:00

16/07484/LIPDPS

The Lido Restaurant 

(Seasonal Exterior Bar)

Ground Floor Hyde Park 1 

Serpentine Road London W2 

2UH

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 

23:30 | Sunday; 10:00 - 23:00

12/01102/LIPN Hyde Park Sports Pavilion

The Pavilion Hyde Park 1 

Serpentine Road London

Monday to Sunday; 07:00 - 

22:00

18/11416/LIPDPS Winter Wonderland

Hyde Park Serpentine Road 

London W2 2UH

Monday to Sunday; 10:00 - 

22:00

18/10270/LIPDPS Hyde Park

Hyde Park Serpentine Road 

London W2 2UH

Monday to Sunday; 05:00 - 

00:00

15/09152/LIPDPS

Serpentine Bar And 

Kitchen

Ground Floor Only Hyde Park 1 

Serpentine Road London W2 

2UH

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 

23:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00

17/05472/LIPN Marble Arch Theatre

Western Traffic Island Marble 

Arch London W1H 7DX

Monday to Saturday; 12:00 - 

23:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00

17/02512/LIPT Kensington Gardens

Kensington Gardens Serpentine 

Road London W2 2UH

Monday to Sunday; 06:00 - 

21:30

14/06153/LIPDPS The Lancaster London

Royal Lancaster Hotel 

Lancaster Terrace London W2 

2TY

Monday to Sunday; 00:00 - 

00:00  
 
 
 

page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

   

Date:  13 December 2018 
   

Licensing Ref No:  18/11463/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 
   

Title of Report:  Muriels Kitchen 
36 Old Compton Street 
London 
W1D 4US 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  West End 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Daisy Gadd 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 0207 641 2737 
Email: dgadd@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 153

Agenda Item 2



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

27 September 2018 

Applicant: Maxwell's Restaurants Ltd 

Premises: Muriels Kitchen 

Premises address: 36 Old Compton Street 
London 
W1D 4US 
 

Ward: 
 

West End 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End 

Premises description: 
 

This premises currently operates as a restaurant.  

Variation description: This variation application seeks the following: 
 

1. To extend the permitted commencement hours on all 
days of the week, for the retail sale of alcohol, to 
accommodate the service of breakfast. A two hour 
extension is sought Monday to Saturday, from 10:00 to 
08:00 and a four hour extension is sought on Sundays, 
from 12:00 to 08:00. 
 
2. To extend the terminal hour for the retail sale of alcohol 
on all days to promote the licensing objectives and the 
responsible service of alcohol. A 30 min extension for the 
retail sale of alcohol is sought Monday to Wednesday, 
from 23:30 to 00:00, a one and a half hour extension on 
Thursday from 23:30 to 01:00, an hour extension on 
Friday and Saturday from 00:00 to 01:00 and an hour 
extension on Sunday, from 22:30 to 23:30. 
 
Note- The overall permitted hours for licensable activities 
is not being increased as a result of this 
application as the premises has a terminal hour 01:30 for 
late night refreshment Monday to Sunday. 
 
3. To amend, update and delete condition as per our 
attached document; namely conditions 13, 14, 15, 
18, 22, 27, 28, 30, 31, 32 and 34 
 

Premises licence history: 
 

This premises has had the benefit of a premises licence 
since 2010. Full details of the premises licence history 
can be found at Appendix 3 of the report. 

Applicant submissions: None 

Application information: On original submission of the application, the applicant 
stated to add New Year’s Eve permissions as part of the 
non-standard timings.  

page 154



The Licensing Service contacted the applicant to inform 
them the premises already has the benefit of New Year’s 
Eve permissions, which can be found in the following 
sections of the report. The applicant confirmed that the 
part of the application to add New Year’s Eve non-
standard timings to the premises licence was an error on 
their part and should not form part of this application.  
 
However, the applicant did confirm that, as there is no 
condition on the premises licence relating to New Year’s 
Eve permissions, they wish to proceed with the aspect of 
the application applying to add such a condition onto the 
premises licence. This condition can be found at section 
1F of the report.  

 

1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours 
 

Late night refreshment 
 

Indoors, outdoors or both Current : Proposed: 

Indoors  

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 23:00 01:30 No Change Ground Floor 
and Mezzanine 

No Change 

Tuesday 23:00 01:30 

Wednesday 23:00 01:30 

Thursday 23:00 01:30 

Friday 23:00 01:30 

Saturday 23:00 01:30 

Sunday 23:00 01:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

New Year’s Eve from 23:00 to 
05:00 on New Year’s Day 

No change 

An additional hour to the standard 
and non-standard times on the 
day when British Summertime 
commences 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 155



 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

On No Change 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 10:00 23:30 08:00 00:00 Ground Floor 
and Mezzanine 

No Change 

Tuesday 10:00 23:30 08:00 00:00 

Wednesday 10:00 23:30 08:00 00:00 

Thursday 10:00 23:30 08:00 01:00 

Friday 10:00 00:00 08:00 01:00 

Saturday 10:00 00:00 08:00 01:00 

Sunday 12:00 22:30 08:00 23:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

Sundays before Bank Holidays: 
12:00 to 00:00 

No Change 

From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on New Year’s 
Day 

An additional hour to the standard 
and non-standard times on the 
day when British Summertime 
commences 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Premises Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 07:00 01:30 No Change Basement, 
Ground Floor 
and Mezzanine 
(licensable 
activities only in 
Ground Floor 
and Mezzanine) 

No Change 

Tuesday 07:00 01:30 

Wednesday 07:00 01:30 

Thursday 07:00 01:30 

Friday 07:00 01:30 

Saturday 07:00 01:30 

Sunday 07:00 01:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

From the end of permitted hours 
on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on New Year’s 
Day 

No Change 

An additional hour to the standard 
and non-standard times on the 
day when British Summertime 
commences 

New Year’s Eve from 23:00 to 
05:00 on New Year’s Day 

 

page 156



 

1-C Layout alteration 
 

No layout alteration is sought as part of this variation application. 

 

1-D Conditions proposed by the applicant to be removed 
 

Condition 13  
 
There shall be an intensive 2 weeks training scheme for all staff joining the company 
and there shall be ongoing training in relation to food hygiene, health and safety, fire 
safety and sale of age restricted items.  

Condition 14  
 
The management shall use their best endeavour to make sure they are good 
neighbours to anyone, residents or businesses within the vicinity. 

 

1-E Conditions proposed by the applicant to be amended 
 

Condition Proposed variation 

Condition 15  
 
Families shall be welcome at the premises 
and unaccompanied persons under the 
age of 18 shall be allowed on the 
premises. Staff shall be trained to ensure 
that there is no provision of alcohol to 
persons under 18 years.  

 
 
Staff shall be trained to ensure that there 
is no provision of alcohol to persons under 
18 years. 

Condition 18  
 
No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 
5.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) or above 
shall be sold at the premises. 

 
 
No more than two super-strength beer, 
lagers or ciders of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by 
volume) or above shall be sold at the 
premises. 

Condition 22 
 
An incident log shall be kept at the 
premises and made available on request 
to an authorised officer of the City Council 
or the Police, which will record the 
following:  
 

(a) All crimes reported to the venue  
(b) All ejections of patrons 
(c) Any incidents of disorder 
(d) Any faults in the CCTV system or 

searching equipment or scanning 
equipment  

(e) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(f) Any visit by a relevant authority or 

emergency service  

 
 
An incident log shall be kept at the 
premises, and made available on request 
to an authorised officer of the City Council 
or the Police. It must be completed within 
24 hours of the incident and will record the 
following:  
 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning 
crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive 
weapons  
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, 

page 157



searching equipment or scanning 
equipment  
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or 
emergency service.  

 

Condition 27  
 
No entertainment, performance, service or 
exhibition involving nudity or sexual 
stimulation which would come within the 
definition of a sex establishment in 
Schedule 3 to the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as 
amended by the Greater London Council 
(General Powers) Act 1986 (whether or 
not locally adopted) shall be provided. 

 
 
There shall be no striptease or nudity, and 
all persons shall be decently attired at all 
times, except when the premises are 
operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence.  
 

Condition 28  
 
The highway and public spaces in the 
vicinity of the premises are kept free of 
litter from the premises at all material 
times to the satisfaction of the Council.  

 
 
During the hours of operation of the 
premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove 
and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area 
immediately outside the premises, and that 
this area shall be swept and or washed, 
and litter and sweepings collected and 
stored in accordance with the approved 
refuse storage arrangements by close of 
business.  
 

Condition 30  
 
No rubbish including bottles will be moved, 
removed or placed in outside areas 
between 23:00 hours and 07:00 hours. 

 
 
No rubbish, including bottles, shall be 
moved, removed or placed in outside 
areas between 0130 hours and 0600 
hours or as in compliance with 
Westminster City Council’s own waste 
contractor collection hours.  
 

Condition 31  
 
No collections, including refuse and 
recyclable food waster, shall take place 
between 00:00 and 07:00 hours.  

 
 
No collections, including refuse and 
recyclable food waste, shall take place 
between 0130 hours and 0600 hours or as 
in compliance with Westminster City 
Council’s own waste contractor collection 
hours. 

Condition 32  
 
No noise shall emanate from the premises 
nor vibration be transmitted through the 

 
 
No noise generated on the premises, or by 
its associated plant or equipment, shall 

page 158



structure of the premises which gives rise 
to a nuisance.  

emanate from the premises nor vibration 
be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

Condition 34  
 
The venue shall install and maintain a 
comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirements of a Metropolitan 
Police Crime Prevention Officer. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling 
frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV 
system shall continually record whilst the 
premises is open for licensable activities 
and during all times when customers 
remain on the premises. All recordings 
shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 
days with date and time stamping. 
Recordings shall be made available 
immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the 
preceding 31 day period.    

 
 
The premises shall install and maintain a 
comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirements of the Westminster 
Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal 
identification of every person entering in 
any light condition. The CCTV system 
shall continually record whilst the premises 
is open for licensable activities and during 
all times when customers remain on the 
premises. All recordings shall be stored for 
a minimum period of 31 days with date 
and time stamping. Viewing of recordings 
shall be made available immediately upon 
the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period.  
 

 

1-F Conditions proposed by the applicant to be added 
 

The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol, and the provision of late night 
refreshment from the terminal hour for those activities on New Year’s Eve through to the 
commencement time for those activities on New Year’s Day.  

 

2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority 

Representative:  Ms Roxsana Haq 
 

Received:  
 

16 October 2018 

I write in relation to the application (18/11463/LIPV) submitted to vary a premises 
Licence for the following premises: Muriels Kitchen, 36 Old Compton Street, London 
W1D 4US.  
 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
under the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have 
considered your application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to 
this application and how the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives: 
• Public Nuisance 
• Prevention of Crime & Disorder 
• Public Safety 
• Protection of Children from harm 
 

page 159



 
This application seeks the following: 

 Increase the hours for the sale by retail of alcohol (On sales) 
 
Monday to Wednesday 08:00 – 00:00 (currently 10:00 – 23:30) 
Thursday to Saturday 08:00 – 01:00 (currently 10:00 – 00:00) 
Sundays 08:00 - 23:30 (currently 12:00 – 22:30) 
 

 amend, update and /or delete conditions 13, 14, 15,18, 22, 27, 28, 30, 31, 32 and 
34 
 

 Add New Years Eve permissions in non standard timings to read: 
 

“The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol, and the provision of late 
night refreshment from the terminal hour for those activities on New Year's Eve 
through to the commencement time for those activities on New Year's Day.” 
 

The premises is located within the West End Cumulative Impact area and as such a 
number of policy points must be considered namely RNT2, HRS1 and CIP1. 
 
The hours applied for are outside the core hours for licensable activity and whilst we 
note the premises has a 1.30am terminal hour for late night refreshment Mon-Sun, the  
applicant must demonstrate why these additional hours requested for the sale of alcohol 
will not add to cumulative impact within the cumulative impact area. 
 
Further discussions will be held with the applicants prior to the hearing and any further 
submissions will be forwarded on for Members information. I look forward to hearing 
from you. 
 
Please accept this as a formal representation. 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health 

Representative: Mr Dave Nevitt 
 

Received: 
 

23 October 2018 

I wish to make Representations on the following grounds: 
 
Representation is made in relation to the application, as the proposals are likely to 
increase Public Nuisance and may impact upon Public Safety 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 160



3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevent policies. 

For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises: 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to 
midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
 
For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
Monday to Thursday: 09:00 to 23.30 
Friday and Saturday: 09:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09:00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09:00 to 22:30 
 

Policy CIP1 applies: 

 

 (i) It is the Licensing Authority's policy to refuse 
applications in the Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and 
bars, fast food premises, and premises offering facilities for 
music and dancing; other than applications to vary hours within 
the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii)  Applications for other licensable activities in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and 
must demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas. 

Policy RNT2 applies: 

 

Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this 
Statement and subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1, provided it can be demonstrated that they 
will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact 
Areas. 

Policy PB2 applies: 

 

It is the Licensing Authority's policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary 
hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

 

 
 
 
 

page 161



4. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 Existing premises licence  
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 
Report author: Daisy Gadd 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 0207 641 2737  
Email: dgadd@westminster.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Representation Licensing Authority 16 October 2018 

5 Representation Environmental Health 23 October 2018 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 162



Premises Plans                 Appendix 1 
 

 
 

page 163



 

page 164



Applicant Supporting Documents              Appendix 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 165



 
 
 
 

page 166



 
 
 

page 167



 
 
 

page 168



 
 

page 169



 
 

page 170



 
 

page 171



 
 

page 172



 
 

page 173



 
 

page 174



 
 

page 175



 

page 176



Appendix 3 
 

Licence & Appeal History  
 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

10/04761/LIPN Application for a new 
premises licence 

12.08.2010 Granted by 
Licensing Sub-
Committee 

11/00821/LIPV Application to vary the 
premises licence  

10.03.2011 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

11/02434/LIPVM Application for a minor 
variation of the 
premises licence 

08.04.2011 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

11/03045/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

19.04.2011 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

11/07562/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

04.08.2011 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

12/04296/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

29.07.2012 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

13/00197/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

29.01.2013 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

13/01721/LIPV Application to vary the 
premises licence  

17.04.2013 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

13/01727/LIPT Application to transfer 
the premises licence 
from Leon Restaurants 
Limited to ATFC 
Limited 

08.05.2013 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

13/07468/LIPV Application to vary the 
premises licence  

04.11.2013 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

13/08581/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

31.12.2013 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

13/09671/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

31.12.2013 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

page 177



14/01948/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

01.04.2014 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

14/08268/LIPVM Application for a minor 
variation of the 
premises licence 

14.10.2014 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

15/01661/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

27.03.2015 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

15/05523/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

24.07.2015 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

17/05042/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

23.10.2017 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

17/12041/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

09.11.2017 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

18/01435/LIPT Application to transfer 
the premises licence 
from ATFC Limited to 
Maxwell’s Restaurants 
Ltd. 

02.04.2018 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

18/01551/LIPDPS Application to vary the 
Designated Premises 
Supervisor 

27.06.2018 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

18/07605/LIPVM Application for a minor 
variation of the 
premises licence 

09.07.2018 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

11/01112/STTC Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

13.05.2011 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

11/09580/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

08.11.2011 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

12/03518/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

11.05.2012 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

12/09476/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

07.11.2012 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

page 178



13/02971/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

13.05.2013 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

13/08423/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

08.11.2013 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

14/03563/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

09.05.2014 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

14/09520/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

11.11.2014 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

15/03517/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

11.05.2015 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

15/10103/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

10.11.2015 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

16/04560/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

09.05.2016 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

16/12051/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

16.12.2016 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

17/02634/STTCF Application for a tables 
& chairs licence 

15.05.2017 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

18/11731/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice Application 

09.10.2018 Event to proceed 

18/12103/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice Application 

09.10.2018 Event to proceed 

18/12229/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice Application 

18.10.2018 Event to proceed 

18/12800/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice Application 

14.11.2018 Event to proceed 

18/12876/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice Application 

09.11.2018 Event to proceed 

18/13486/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice Application 

09.11.2018 Event to proceed 

 
 
There is no appeal history 

page 179



Existing Premises Licence                      Appendix 4 
 

 
 

page 180



 
 

page 181



 
 

page 182



 
 

page 183



 
 

page 184



 
 

page 185



 
 

page 186



 
 

page 187



 
 

page 188



 
 

page 189



 
 

page 190



 
 
 
 
 

page 191



Appendix 5 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 

 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is 
suspended. 

 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 

the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

page 192



 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed 

or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 

encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 

flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 

than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by 
reason of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 

request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises 
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 

must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 

to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 

policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 

bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 

having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

page 193



 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 

material which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 

quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or 
officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to 
prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 
Act 1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 

page 194



(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 
Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from 

this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
None 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
9.  The premises shall operate predominantly as a restaurant.  
 
10.  Alcohol consumed in the designated outside area shall only be consumed by 

patrons seated at tables.  
 
11.  All staff shall be trained in respect of the Licensing Act requirements and 

offences, and in particular in respect of underage sales. If there is any doubt 
about the age of any customers requesting the purchase of alcohol, photographic 
evidence will be required.  

 
12.  Seating shall be provided for at least 90% of the total capacity of the premises.  
 
13.  There shall be an intensive 2 weeks training scheme for all staff joining the 

company and there shall be ongoing training in relation to food hygiene, health 
and safety, fire safety and sale of age restricted items.  

 
 Condition 13 is proposed to be removed by the applicant.  
 
14.  The management shall use their best endeavour to make sure they are good 

neighbours to anyone, residents or businesses within the vicinity.  
 
 Condition 14 is proposed to be removed by the applicant.  
 
15.  Families shall be welcome at the premises and unaccompanied persons under 

the age of 18 shall be allowed on the premises. Staff shall be trained to ensure 
that there is no provision of alcohol to persons under 18 years.  

 
 Condition 15 is proposed to be amended by the applicant to the following:  
 

page 195



 Staff shall be trained to ensure that there is no provision of alcohol to persons 
under 18 years.  

 
16.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 

the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly.  
 
17.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting 

patrons to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.  
 
18.  No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) or 

above shall be sold at the premises.  
 
 Condition 18 is proposed to be amended by the applicant to the following:  
 
 No more than two super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by 

volume) or above shall be sold at the premises.  
 
19.  Prominent signage indicating the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol shall be 

displayed so as to be visible before entering the premises, where alcohol is on 
public display, and at the point of sale.  

 
20.  The supply of alcohol at the premises shall only be to a person seated taking a 

table meal there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to their meal.  
 
21.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall 

be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises.  

 
22.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following:  

 
(a) All crimes reported to the venue  
(b) All ejections of patrons  
(c) Any incidents of disorder 
(d) Any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning 

equipment  
(e) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(f) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service  

 
 Condition 22 is proposed to be amended by the applicant to the following: 
 

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 
an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed 
within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:  
 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment  

page 196



(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

  
23.  The supply of alcohol shall only be by counter staff or waiter or waitress service.  
 
24.  Before any alcohol can be supplied in any Exterior Dining Area a street trading 

licence under the City of Westminster Act 1999, if necessary, must be obtained. 
In any case this area must cease to be used after 23:00 hours and any street 
furniture rendered unusable after this time.  

 
25.  Except for in any permitted Exterior Dining Area patrons temporarily leaving the 

premises, such as for the purposes of smoking, shall not take any drinks with 
them outside the premises. 

 
26.  The number of persons accommodated at any one time (excluding staff) shall 

never exceed the following on each floor: 
 
 Ground Floor: 140  
 Mezzanine:  30  
 
 Provided always that the combined capacity when the premises is in use under 

this licence shall never exceed 140 in total (excluding staff).  
 
27.  No entertainment, performance, service or exhibition involving nudity or sexual 

stimulation which would come within the definition of a sex establishment in 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as 
amended by the Greater London Council (General Powers) Act 1986 (whether or 
not locally adopted) shall be provided.  

 
 Condition 27 is proposed to be amended by the applicant to the following:  
 

There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at 
all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence.  

 
28.  The highway and public spaces in the vicinity of the premises are kept free of 

litter from the premises at all material times to the satisfaction of the Council.  
 
 Condition 28 is proposed to be amended by the applicant to the following:  
 

During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business.  

 
29.  All waste is to be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 

30 minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 
30.  No rubbish including bottles will be moved, removed or placed in outside areas 

between 23:00 and 07:00 hours.  

page 197



 
 Condition 30 is proposed to be amended by the applicant to the following:  
 
 No rubbish, including bottles, shall be moved, removed or placed in outside 

areas between 01:30 hours and 06:00 hours or as in compliance with 
Westminster City Council’s own waste contractor collection hours.  

 
31.  No collections, including refuse and recyclable food waste, shall take place 

between 00:00 and 07:00 hours.  
 
 Condition 31 is proposed to be amended by the applicant to the following: 
 
 No collections, including refuse and recyclable food waste, shall take place 

between 01:30 hours and 06:00 hours or as in compliance with Westminster’s 
City Councils own waste contractor collection hours.  

 
32.  No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through 

the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  
 
 Condition 32 is proposed to be amended by the applicant to the following:  
 
 No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, 

shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  

 
33.  Flashing or particularly bright lights from the premises shall not cause a nuisance 

to nearby properties.  
 
34.  The venue shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All 
entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every 
person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record 
whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made 
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout 
the preceding 31 day period.  

 
 Condition 34 is proposed to be amended by the applicant to the following:  
 

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 
the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period.  

 
35.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open to 

page 198



the public. This staff member shall be able to show Police or an authorised 
officer of the Council recent data or footage with the absolute minimum of delay 
when requested. 

 
Conditions proposed by the applicant to be added to the operating schedule: 
 
36.  The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol, and the provision of late 

night refreshment from the terminal hour for those activities on New Year's Eve 
through to the commencement time for those activities on New Year's Day. 

 
Conditions proposed by Environmental Health:  
 
None  
 
Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority: 
 
None 
 
  

 
 
 
  
 

 

page 199



Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity         Appendix 6 
 
Due to a technical issue with the Council’s GIS mapping system, an alternative map of 
the premises and locality has been provided below. 

 
 

page 200



 
 
Resident count = 128 persons within a 75m radius of the premises 
 

page 201



Licence Number Trading Name Address Time Period 

17/01437/LIPVM Caffe Nero Ground Floor 43 
Frith Street 
London W1D 4SA 

Thursday to Saturday; 
23:00 - 04:00 | Sunday to 
Wednesday; 23:00 - 02:00 

06/12560/WCCMAP The Delhi 
Brasserie 

44 Frith Street 
London W1D 4SB 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

18/02601/LIPVM ZIMA Russian 
Street Food 
And Bar 

45 Frith Street 
London W1D 4SD 

Monday; 10:00 - 01:00 | 
Tuesday; 10:00 - 01:00 | 
Wednesday; 10:00 - 01:00 
| Thursday; 10:00 - 01:00 | 
Friday; 10:00 - 01:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 

08/09144/LIPD The Vintage 
House 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 42 
Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 4LR 

Monday to Saturday; 08:00 
- 23:00 | Sunday; 10:00 - 
22:30 

18/02552/LIPV Soho Whisky 
Club 

First Floor 42 Old 
Compton Street 
London W1D 4TX 

Monday; 10:00 - 23:00 | 
Tuesday; 10:00 - 23:00 | 
Wednesday; 10:00 - 23:00 
| Thursday; 10:00 - 23:00 | 
Friday; 10:00 - 00:00 | 
Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 10:00 - 22:00 

11/01841/LIPDPS Ronnie Scott's 
Jazz Club 

Basement And 
Ground Floor And 
Part First Floor 47 
Frith Street 
London W1D 4HT 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 
- 03:30 | Sunday; 09:00 - 
00:30 

16/09678/LIPV Pepe Italian 
Street Food 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 27 
Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 5JP 

Monday to Wednesday; 
08:00 - 00:30 | Thursday to 
Saturday; 08:00 - 03:00 | 
Sunday; 10:00 - 00:00 

16/05700/LIPDPS Patisserie 
Valerie 

44 Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 4TY 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

18/02577/LIPDPS Hotel Chocolat 25 Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 5JN 

Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:00 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 10:00 - 22:30 

17/00253/LIPVM The Groucho 
Club 

44-45 Dean 
Street London 
W1D 4QB 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 
- 02:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

page 202



18/00862/LIPVM Muse Soho Basement 23 
Frith Street 
London W1D 4RR 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 
- 04:00 | Sunday; 09:00 - 
01:00 

17/03246/LIPCH Bar Italia Basement And 
Ground Floor 
Front 22 Frith 
Street London 
W1D 4RP 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 05:00 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
05:00 

16/09901/LIPV Lobos Meat   
Tapas 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 48 
Frith Street 
London W1D 4SF 

Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 22:30 | 
Sundays before Bank 
Holidays; 12:00 - 00:00 

16/09219/LIPDPS Balans Cafe 34 Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 4TR 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 05:00 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
05:00 

16/00095/LIPDPS Compton News 48 Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 4UA 

Monday to Saturday; 07:00 
- 01:00 | Sunday; 08:00 - 
22:00 

18/07314/LIPDPS Belgo 29 - 31 Old 
Compton Street 
London W1D 5JS 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

17/03238/LIPCH Little Italy 21A Frith Street 
London W1D 
4RW 

Monday to Sunday; 09:00 - 
05:30 

06/06245/WCCMAP Little Italy Two Ground Floor 21A 
Frith Street 
London W1D 4RF 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 05:00 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
05:00 

17/14701/LIPCH Cay Tre (Soho) 42-43 Dean 
Street London 
W1D 4QA 

Monday to Sunday; 09:30 - 
01:30 

06/06142/WCCMAP Little Italy 21 Frith Street 
London W1D 4RN 

Monday to Sunday; 09:00 - 
05:00 

06/05092/WCCMAP Dodo 
Supermarket 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 24 
Frith Street 
London W1D 5LA 

Monday to Thursday; 
08:00 - 01:00 | Friday to 
Saturday; 08:00 - 03:00 | 
Sunday; 10:00 - 22:30 

page 203



13/04050/LIPDPS Dozo Basement And 
Ground Floor 40 
Frith Street 
London W1D 5LN 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

13/04926/LIPDPS Herman Ze 
German 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 33 
Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 5JU 

Monday to Thursday; 
11:00 - 23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 11:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 11:00 - 22:30 

13/04738/LIPVM Dozo Basement To 
First Floor 32 Old 
Compton Street 
London W1D 4TP 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 01:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

17/01613/LIPVM Hoppers 49 Frith Street 
London W1D 4SG 

Monday to Saturday; 08:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 08:00 - 
23:30 

11/08882/LIPDPS Duck Soup Basement And 
Ground Floor 41 
Dean Street 
London W1D 4PY 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

17/14358/LIPDPS Not Recorded 39 Frith Street 
London W1D 5LL 

Monday to Sunday; 06:00 - 
03:00 

16/03879/LIPDPS Ku Bar Basement To 
First Floor 25 
Frith Street 
London W1D 5LB 

Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 10:00 - 22:30 | 
Sundays before Bank 
Holidays; 10:00 - 00:00 

13/04147/LIPDPS 40 Dean Street 40 Dean Street 
London W1D 4PX 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

08/06508/LIPDPS The Arts 
Theatre Club 

Ground Floor 
West 50 Frith 
Street London 
W1D 4SQ 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 
- 03:30 | Sunday; 09:00 - 
23:00 

16/09930/LIPDPS Koya Bar Ground Floor 50 
Frith Street 
London W1D 4SQ 

Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 22:30 

18/03126/LIPV G-A-Y Bar Basement To 
First Floor 30 Old 
Compton Street 
London W1D 4UR 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 
- 01:00 | Sunday; 09:00 - 
00:30 | New Year's Eve; 
00:00 - 00:00 

page 204



15/06965/LIPN Blade Soho 26 Frith Street 
London W1D 5LD 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 22:00 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
20:00 

14/00825/LIPDPS Pulcinella 
Restaurant 

Basement To 
First Floor 37 Old 
Compton Street 
London W1D 5JY 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

12/02725/LIPDPS Gauthier At 
Lindsay House 

21 Romilly Street 
London W1D 5AF 

Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 10:00 - 22:30 

16/09417/LIPVM Bar Soho 23 Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 5JL 

Monday to Thursday; 
09:00 - 01:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 09:00 - 03:30 | 
Sunday; 09:00 - 01:00 

18/03962/LIPDPS Burger & 
Lobster 

36 - 38 Dean 
Street London 
W1D 3TE 

Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 01:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 | 
Sundays before Bank 
Holidays; 12:00 - 00:30 

11/02308/LIPDPS Prix Fixe 
Brasserie 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 39 
Dean Street 
London W1D 4PU 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

13/07472/LIPDPS BA Shan 
Restaurant 

24 Romilly Street 
London W1D 5AH 

Monday to Saturday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:30 

18/08872/LIPDPS Assa 23 Romilly Street 
London W1D 5AQ 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 23:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 

15/02220/LIPV Bistro 1 27 Frith Street 
London W1D 5LE 

Monday to Saturday; 08:00 
- 01:00 | Sunday; 08:00 - 
00:00 

18/04716/LIPDPS Rosas Ground Floor And 
Basement 48 
Dean Street 
London W1D 5BF 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 23:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:00 

17/14888/LIPDPS Kyoto 26 Romilly Street 
London W1D 5AJ 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

page 205



12/07550/LIPDPS Karaoke Box Ground Floor 18 
Frith Street 
London W1D 
4RQ 

Monday to Wednesday; 
09:00 - 02:00 | Thursday to 
Saturday; 09:00 - 05:00 | 
Sunday; 09:00 - 23:00 

18/05834/LIPDPS Cecconi's Soho 19-21 Old 
Compton Street 
London W1D 5JJ 

Monday to Saturday; 08:00 
- 03:30 | Sunday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | New Year's Eve; 
00:00 - 00:00 

18/08626/LIPT Berenjak 27 Romilly Street 
London W1D 5AL 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

11/12180/LIPVM Ceviche Basement And 
Ground Floor 17 
Frith Street 
London W1D 
4RG 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 01:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
01:00 

12/03653/LIPDPS Tonkotsu Basement To 
First Floor 63 
Dean Street 
London W1D 
4QG 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

17/04816/LIPDPS Le Relais De 
Venise 
L'Entrecote 

50 Dean Street 
London W1D 5BQ 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 
- 03:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

17/09956/LIPN Kettners 
Townhouse 

29 Romilly Street 
London W1D 5HP 

Monday to Sunday; 00:00 - 
00:00 

18/03323/LIPDPS Freak Scene 54 Frith Street 
London W1D 4SL 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 01:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
01:00 

09/06680/LIPVM French House 
Public House 

49 Dean Street 
London W1D 5BG 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

18/04488/LIPDPS Gourmet 
Burger Kitchen 

15 Frith Street 
London W1D 4RE 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

17/08963/LIPN Rambla 64 Dean Street 
London W1D 
4QQ 

Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 00:00 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 

page 206



18/14060/LIPRW Cafe Boheme Basement And 
Ground Floor 13 - 
17 Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 5JH 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 
- 05:00 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

06/07744/WCCMAP Garlic & Shots Basement And 
Ground Floor 14 
Frith Street 
London W1D 4RD 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 01:00 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:30 

17/06945/LIPDPS Admiral 
Duncan Public 
House 

54 Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 4UD 

Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 22:30 

18/00946/LIPDPS Blacks Basement To 
First Floor 67 
Dean Street 
London W1D 
4QH 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 01:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
01:00 

16/00056/LIPCH &Pasta 60 Dean Street 
London W1D 
6AW 

Monday to Thursday; 
07:00 - 00:00 | Friday to 
Saturday; 07:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 07:00 - 23:00 

17/14216/LIPDPS Maitre Choux 60 Dean Street 
London W1D 
6AW 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 23:00 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
22:30 

18/04298/LIPDPS Smack Soho Kemble House 58 
Dean Street 
London W1D 6AL 

Monday to Saturday; 12:00 
- 22:00 

16/06874/LIPDPS Bar Shu 28 Frith Street 
London W1D 5LF 

Monday to Saturday; 11:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 11:00 - 
00:00 

17/02045/LIPVM Prince Edward 
Theatre 

Prince Edward 
Theatre 28 Old 
Compton Street 
London W1D 4HS 

Monday to Sunday; 09:00 - 
01:00 

06/05786/WCCMAP Tuk Tuk Basement And 
Ground Floor 56 
Old Compton 
Street London 
W1D 4UE 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

17/07932/LIPN Not Recorded 55 Frith Street 
London W1D 4SJ 

Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 23:59 | 
Sunday; 12:00 - 22:00 

page 207



18/14062/LIPRW Soho House 40 Greek Street 
London W1D 4EB 

Monday to Friday; 08:00 - 
03:30 | Saturday; 10:00 - 
03:30 | Sunday; 10:00 - 
23:00 

13/01625/LIPDPS Gopal's Of 
Soho 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 12 
Bateman Street 
London W1D 4AH 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | Sunday; 12:00 - 
00:00 

 

page 208


	Agenda
	1 Hyde Park, Serpentine Road, London, W2 2UH11
	2 Muriels Kitchen, 36 Old Compton Street, London, W1D 4US



